
Hull History Centre: Research records collected by Mallard Edward Ingram, Historian  

Page 1 of 5 

 
 

C DIIN     Research records collected by Mallard Edward Ingram, Historian, 
in the course of his lifetime   1785-1980 

 
Accession number: 16/21 
 
Historical Background: Mallard Edward Ingram was born in Hull on 17 Jan 1912. His 
Father was Mallard Henry Ingram from Wath upon Dearne, Yorkshire and his Mother was 
Rebecca Page from Bottesford, Leicestershire (1911 census states that the family lived at 30 
Rosemead Street, Newbridge Road, Hull). He studied at the University College of Hull and 
became a teacher in Bridlington. He was also a historian and author with a particular interest 
in Churches, transport and architecture.  
 
He wrote or co-wrote the following books: 

 'The Maisters of Kingston upon Hull, 1560-1840 : portrait of a merchant family' 
illustrated by Francis F. Johnson L.920MAI (1983) 

 'The Church of St. Mary-the-virgin, Hull-History' L.283 S MARY  (1948) 
'Drypool'  L.9.82 (1959) 

 'Our Lady of Hull' L.283 S MAR (1948) 

 'Leaves from a family tree, being the correspondence of an East Riding Family.' L.920 
GRI (date unknown) 

 'The Manor of Bridlington and its Lords Feoffees'  illustrated by Francis F. Johnson 
L.9.54 BR (1977) 

 'Drypool : being the history of the ancient parish of Drypool cum Southcoates. [with 
illustrations.]' L.9.82 (1960) 

 'The Hull and Barnsley Railway / edited by K Hoole. Vol 1 / by M Edward Ingram [et 
al]' L.385.11 (1972) 
 

He was active in a number of societies and it was through attendance at meetings of the 
Augustinian Society that, in December 1936, Edward met his life-long partner, Francis 
Frederick  Johnson, an Architect highly respected in his field, renowned for his traditional and 
classical work. 
 
Together they lived at Craven House, 16 High Street, Bridlington, Leys House, Sewerby and 
eventually at Reighton Hall, nr Filey. Edward had a sister, Dorothy Edith, who lived with them 
until her death in 1988. 
 
From the late 1930s both Edward and Francis (aka Ted and Jim) became very much involved 
in campaigns to protect Bridlington's 'Old Town'. 
Francis Johnson died in hospital at Leeds on the 29 September 1995. Edward died in a 
nursing home on 19 December 1997, aged 85 years. He and Francis have a joint gravestone 
in Reighton Churchyard which simply reads 'Francis Frederick Johnson Architect' and below 
'Mallard Edward Ingram Historian'. 
 
Custodial history: The items in this collection were collected by Mallard Edward Ingram 
whilst preparing his various books. They were inherited, after Edward's death in Dec 1997, by 
Mr Anthony E. Ingram whose father was Edward's cousin. He subsequently gave them to the 
History Centre in May 2016 
 
Description: Scrap books, research notes, photograph albums and correspondence relating 
to the History of Hull and the East Riding 
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Extent: 12 volumes, 2 bundles 
 
Related material: Other material is held by the University Archives in the Francis F. Johnson 
collection (U DFJ) and Edward Ingram's research into the Maister Family can be found at  
C DMI. Most of Edward Ingram's published books are also available at the History Centre. 
Please search for individual titles using our online catalogue. 
 
Access conditions: Access will be granted to any accredited reader 
  

 
 

C DIIN/1 Volume of news cuttings (un-indexed) 
Includes articles about Hull's floods, the 
demolition of St Stephen's Church tower, the 
closure of Drypool Bridge and the opening of the 
new Drypool Bridge, a new look for Paragon 
Station, the clearing of the old Hedon Road 
Cemetery, the consecration of the new St 
Columba's Church, Holderness Road, a plan for a 
new museum on Queen's Gardens, Dairycoates 
flyover and the closure of the Assembly Rooms on 
Kingston Square 

1 volume 
 

12 Nov 1954- 
8 Jun 1961 

C DIIN/2 Volume of news cuttings (indexed) 
Includes many articles relating to Hull and East 
Riding churches and local architecture in general 
1 volume 
 

Sep 1961- 
Oct 1966 

C DIIN/3 Volume of news cuttings (un-indexed) 
Includes articles relating to the election of 
Assistant Lord Feofees in Bridlington, (please note 
that M. Edward Ingram was one of those elected 
and Francis F. Johnson was Chief Lord of the 
Manor of Bridlington at the time. Ingram also 
wrote a book entitled 'The Manor of Bridlington 
and its Lords Feoffees' in 1977 ) clearing of the 
Hull General Cemetery, the restoration of Holy 
Trinity Church, Hull Tramways, Lord Duveen, 
plans to fill in the Princes Dock, the demolition of 
the Newland Congregational Church, Queens Hall 
Methodist Church, Hull Royal Infirmary on 
Prospect Street and Field's Cafe on Savile Street 
1 volume 
 

Dec 1966- 
Nov 1977 

C DIIN/4 Volume of news cuttings (un-indexed) 
Includes articles relating to the early history of Hull 
and Bridlington, William Wilberforce, the history of 
congregationalism, the Royal Institution, the Land 
of Green Ginger and railways. Also in this volume 
there are a number of artist sketches of : 
Radcliffe's Hospital, Dagger Lane 
Harrison's Hospital, Chapel Lane 

c. 1946-1959 
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Ellis' Hospital, Salthouse Lane 
Crowle's Hospital, Sewer Lane 
 
Gregg's Hospital, Posterngate 
Foxes' Hospital, Chapel Lane 
Staircase in the Old Almshouses, South 
Churchside 

1 volume 
 

C DIIN/5 Volume of news cuttings (un-indexed) 
This volume records the events of Rupert Alec-
Smith's Mayoral year. Rupert Alec-Smith was the 
founder of the Georgian Society for East 
Yorkshire. Edward Ingram and his partner, Francis 
Johnson were both members. They had a life-long 
association with both Alec-Smith and the 
Georgian Society. The two of them were invited to 
several events during the year by the Mayor and 
his wife. Invitations and menus for these 
occasions are in the back of this volume. There is 
also an invitation from the High Sheriff of 
Humberside, Mr Richard Marriott, to two events 
and an order of service dated 2nd May 1971 for 
Hessle Parish Church and the dedication of St 
Barnabas Chapel 
1 volume 
 

Jun 1970- 
May 1971 

C DIIN/6 Notebook of research on the Hull, Barnsley and 
West Riding Junction Railway and Dock Company 
M. Edward Ingram co-wrote a book in 1972 
entitled 'The Hull and Barnsley Railway  Vol 1' 
edited by K Hoole.  L385.11 (1972) 
1 volume 
 

c. 1972 

C DIIN/7 Photograph Album of some of the Hull and 
Barnsley Railway stock 
Includes a Hull & Barnsley Railway old boy's 
reunion photograph dated 19 Oct 1910 and 
photographs relating to the opening of King 
George Dock, 1914. The origins of the album is 
unknown though Edward Ingram's Father, Mallard 
Henry Ingram is believed to have worked for the 
Hull and Barnsley Railway Co as a Clerk (1911 
census) 
1 volume 
 

c. 1900 

C DIIN/8 Notebook (un-indexed) 
This notebook starts as a journal of Mr. Ingram's 
travels during a particular summer (July) and 
changes into research notes primarily about 
churches in Hull and the East Riding 

1 volume 

n.d. 
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C DIIN/9 Notebook (un-indexed) 
This notebook contains research notes primarily  
 
relating to medieval vicars in the Hull and East 
Riding with a large section devoted to St. Mary's 
Lowgate. This research was probably done in 
preparation for his two books on St. Mary's 

1 volume 
 

c. 1948 

C DIIN/10 Notebook (indexed) 
This notebook contains a large section of research 
notes on St. Mary's, Lowgate as well as East 
Riding Churches and the will of John Constable of 
Halsham. There are also notes on East Riding 
ministers at the time of the English Civil War. It is 
clear from the notes that a great deal of his 
research was carried out at the East Riding 
Archive Service in Beverley and at the Borthwick 
Institute in York 

1 volume 
 

n.d. 

C DIIN/11 Notebook (un-indexed) 
This notebook contains a research notes on 
Drypool with many references to records in the 
East Riding Archive Service, Beverley. This 
research was probably done in preparation for his 
book on Drypool in 1959 

1 volume 
 

c. 1959 

C DIIN/12 Album of photographs 
This album contains photographs primarily of St. 
Mary's Church, Lowgate (external and internal). 
On the back page is a picture of Ferriby old 
church. 
1 volume 
 

n.d. 

C DIIN/13 Envelope containing a bundle of letters and other 
notes relating to the history of St Mary's Church, 
Lowgate 
Some of the later letters are written to Edward 
Ingram from clergymen regarding the history of St 
Mary's Church, Lowgate.  Others are from L.M. 
Stanewell, keeper of Hull' s records at the 
Guildhall. The earlier letters are written to John 
Bilson from various people with an interest in St 
Marys, Lowgate. John Bilson (1858–1943) is best 
known for his architectural research on the 
medieval period. All of the letters appear to give 
information concerning the  personalities 
associated with St Mary's throughout history. 
There is a list of churchwardens from 1640-1848 

1 bundle 

1913-1961 
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C DIIN/14 Bundle of letters, copy letters and notes relating to 
the Grimston Militia 
Edward Ingram conducted this research for a 
book entitled 'Leaves from a family tree, being the 
correspondence of an East Riding Family.' (date 
unknown). John Grimston was a prominent 
member of the East Riding landowning Grimston 
family of Grimston Garth and Kilnwick. He was 
very active in the local militia. The East Riding 
Archives holds the Grimston family papers at 
reference DDGR. The University of Hull also has 
some papers of the Grimston Family of Grimston 
Garth and Neswick 1625-1891at reference  
U DGN 
The copies of the Grimston letters were made by 
Ingram from originals held by Lady Waechter de 
Grimston of Hall Garth, Goodmanham 

1 bundle 

1785-1955 

 


